
Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend Kent DA12 1AU

Licensing Panel

Members of the Licensing Panel of Gravesham Borough Council are summoned to attend a 
meeting to be held at the Council Chamber, Civic Suite on Monday, 25 February 2019 at 10.00 
am when the business specified in the following agenda is proposed to be transacted.

S Walsh
Service Manager (Communities)

Agenda

Part A
Items likely to be considered in Public

1. Apologies for absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 

3. Consideration of Application for a variation of a  Premises Licence for MRH 
Gravesend, 100 Old Road West, Gravesend, Kent DA11 0LR 

(Pages 3 - 42)

Part B
Items likely to be considered in private

None. 



Members

Cllr Steve Thompson (Chair)
 

Councillors: Karen Hurdle
Michael Wenban

Substitutes: To be notified



Classification: Public
Key Decision: No

Gravesham Borough Council

Report to: Licensing Panel

Date: February 2019

Reporting officer: Emily Lane-Blackwell, Licensing Officer

Subject: Consideration of Application for a variation of a  Premises 
Licence for MRH Gravesend, 100 Old Road West, 
Gravesend, Kent DA11 0LR

Purpose and summary of report: 
To assist Members to determine an application, to which representations have been made, 
for the variation of a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 – Application reference 
19/00004/LAPL02

Recommendations:
1. Members are requested to determine the application on its merits

1. Introduction

1.1 The Licensing Panel is asked to determine an application for a variation of a 
premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of the premises known 
as MRH Gravesend, 100 Old Road West, Gravesend, Kent DA11 0LR

1.2 The Licensing Act 2003 (the 2003 Act) requires the Council (as licensing 
authority) to carry out its various functions so as to promote the following four 
licensing objectives:

 the prevention of crime and disorder
 the protection of public safety 
 the prevention of public nuisance
 the protection of children from harm

1.3 The 2003 Act requires the council to publish a ‘Statement of Licensing Policy’ that 
sets out the policies the council will generally apply to promote the licensing 
objectives when making decisions on applications made under the Act.  The 
council adopted its Statement of Licensing Policy on 20 December 2004.  As 
required by section 5 of the Act, this policy has since been subject to periodic 
revisions with the current policy set to expire on 2 January 2024.  The Policy will 
be available at the meeting for reference purposes.  

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



2

1.4 Under the 2003 Act, licensing authorities must, in carrying out their functions, 
have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182.  The 
Guidance cannot anticipate every possible scenario or set of circumstances that 
may arise.  Provided that the licensing authority has properly understood and 
considered the Guidance, it may depart from it when it has reason to do so.  
However, as the licensing authority is under a duty to have regard to the 
Guidance, it will need to give full reasons for any departure from it.  This would be 
a key consideration for the courts should departure from the Guidance result in a 
determination which gives rise to an appeal or judicial review.  The Guidance will 
be available at the meeting for reference purposes.

1.5 A copy of the council’s approved procedure for hearings of the Panel in relation to 
an application, along with a copy of the Hearing regulations has been circulated to 
all parties prior to the meeting. 

1.6 The Licensing Authority must, under the Act, refer any application for hearing to 
the Licensing Panel where relevant representations are made by a responsible 
authority or an interested party.

1.7 The Panel is reminded that the Human Rights Act guarantees the right to a fair 
hearing for all parties in the determination of their civil rights.  The act also 
provides for the protection of property which may include licences in existence, 
and the protection of private and family life

2. Background

2.1 The premises converted their licence to a premises licence under the Licensing 
Act 2003 and were granted a licence for the sale of alcohol on 24 November 
2005.

2.2 A copy of their current licence is attached as Appendix 2

2.3 There is a hair dresser to the east of the forecourt and residential properties on 
the north, west and east sides of the premises.  Gravesend Cemetery and a piece 
of green land are located to the south.

3. The Application

3.1 On 3 January 2019 an application was received from Winckworth Sherwood LLP 
on behalf of Malthurst Petroleum Limited for the variation of a premises licence 
under section 34 of the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of the premises at 100 Old 
Road West, Gravesend, Kent DA11 0LR

3.2 The application is for:

3.2.1 Off sales of alcohol Monday to Sunday 24 hours, and 

3.2.2 Late night refreshment between 23:00 and 05:00

3.3 Section 16 of the statutory application form asks applicants to describe the steps 
they intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives.  Where an application 
has been properly made and no responsible authority or other person has made a 
relevant representation, or where representations are made and subsequently 
withdrawn, these proposals are ‘converted’ in the form of clear and enforceable 

Page 4



3

licence conditions which, together with the Mandatory Conditions, make up the 
premises licence conditions.  

3.4 A copy of the application, which includes the operating schedule that details the 
steps the applicant intends to take to promote the licensing objectives is shown as 
Appendix 3. 

4. Representations

4.1 At any stage during the 28 day consultation period a responsible authority, a 
Councillor or an interested party, may make representations in connection with 
any of the licensing objectives provided that the grounds are relevant to the 
licensing objectives and are not deemed to be vexatious, frivolous or repetitive.

4.2 Representations have been received from responsible authorities as follows:

4.2.1 Police – Kent Police made the following comments: 

‘Kent Police have no concerns with regards to how the premises currently 
operates but are opposed to the proposal of it becoming a 24 hour operation. The 
premises is located in a residential area. It is likely that the extension of the 
operation at this premises to become a 24 hour service will cause a disturbance to 
residents. The granting of a 24 hour licence at this location is likely to make the 
premises an attractive proposition in the early hours of the morning to persons on 
their way home from one of the many bars and restaurants located in the town 
centre. This increases the risk of incident or disturbance caused by persons 
attending the premises that are already under the influence of alcohol. Whilst the 
premises is located in a residential area, the town centre remains only a short 
walk away. Currently there are no other premises with a 24 hour licence located 
on this side of town and the area immediate to this premises does not suffer with 
the same levels or antisocial behaviour and crime and disorder that is currently 
experienced less than a mile away in the centre of town. 

It is inevitable that an amount of disturbance will be generated by customers using 
this premises should it operate on a 24 hour basis. It is felt that the proposed 
conditions are not sufficient to promote the licensing objectives and do not 
alleviate our concerns.’

The Police have contacted the agent for the application with their concerns, but 
have received no response.

The police have requested that if this licence variation were to be granted that 
further conditions be added to the operating schedule as follows.

1. No beer, lager or cider above 5.5 % ABV shall be sold at the premises

2. No single cans or bottles of beer, lager or cider shall be sold at the premises

3. The customer entrance door to the premises is to be locked daily between 
23:00 to 05:00. During these times all sales must be made via the service 
window 

4. CCTV will be provided in the form of a recordable system, capable of providing 
pictures of evidential quality in all lighting conditions.

Page 5



4

a. Equipment must be maintained in good working order, be correctly 
time and date stamped, recordings MUST be kept on the hard drive 
and kept for a period of 30 days and handed to Police upon reasonable 
request.  

b. The premises licence holder must ensure at all times a DPS or 
appointed member of staff is capable and competent at downloading 
CCTV footage in a recordable format to the Police and Local Authority 
upon reasonable request.  

c. The recording equipment and hard drive shall be kept in a secure 
environment under the control of the DPS or other responsible named 
individual. 

d. In the event of technical failure of the CCTV equipment the premises 
licence holder or DPS must report the failure to the Police Licensing 
Officer within 24 hours unless the CCTV will be repaired before that 
time (licensing.north.division@kent.pnn.police.uk)

5. All persons that sell or supply alcohol to customers must have licensing 
training.  

a. Training should take place within six weeks of employment and any 
new employees will be supervised until the training has taken place.  

b. Training must include:-
i. Avoiding sales of alcohol or age restricted products to those 

under the age of 18.
ii. Recognising customers who appear drunk and refusing sale or 

supply of alcohol 
iii. Knowing the licensing objectives and having read and 

understood the licence conditions
iv. Being able to produce licences/certificates/permits relevant to 

the premises in the absence of licence holder/DPS. 
c. Refresher training should be repeated a minimum of every twelve 

months or earlier if required due to changes of legislation. 
d. Training records must be kept on the premises and shall contain the 

nature, content and frequency of all training. 
e. Records must be made available for inspection by Police, Police 

Licensing Officer and authorised officers from the Local Authority upon 
reasonable request either electronically or hard copy.

6. The License Holder will maintain auditable refusal/incident records. 
a. These records will detail the following;

i. Day, Date and Time of Refusal/Incident.
ii. Nature of Refusal/Incident and reason. 
iii. Details of or description of the individual.

b. These records will be made available for inspection to any Police 
Officer, Police Licensing Officer, and Officer of the Local Authority 
immediately upon demand

7. Clear and legible notices must be prominently displayed requesting customers 
to respect local residents and leave the area quietly. 

The police representation can be found in Appendix 4

Page 6

mailto:licensing.north.division@kent.pnn.police.uk


5

4.2.2 Environmental Protection made the following comments:

‘This Service has serious concerns around the extended opening of these 
premises as follows:

Whilst no complaints have been received from the use of this petrol filling station 
as it is currently operating, it is considered the extension of operation to 24 hour 
use will cause noise disturbance due to customers attracted to the area. This will 
be new noise in an area that is generally residential in nature. Residences 
affected will include a number of properties on Darnley Road which have rear 
facades approximately 20 metres away that directly overlook the petrol station 
forecourt.  The noise will include loud conversations, shouting, revving of 
vehicles, wheel screech, radios etc. There are no other late night opening/24 
hour premises operating in the vicinity so this operation will have the potential to 
attract people from a significant distance including people on their way home 
from late night opening licensed premises in the town. 

It is considered that an amount of disturbance caused by patrons from the 24 
hour operation of petrol stations is inevitable and cannot be prevented by 
condition. Given the residential nature of this area it is considered the introduction 
of the proposed use is likely to cause public nuisance and this Service therefore 
intends to formally object to the current application.’

This was sent by Environmental Protection to the agent to discuss.  As, again, no 
response was received, the formal representation was submitted.

The Environmental Protection representations are shown as Appendix 5.

4.2.3 Planning Officer – made the following comments:

‘The hours of use of the petrol filing station are controlled under the planning 
permission granted under 19980283 as amended by 20000158, currently 0600 to 
2300.  Planning permission will be required for 24 hours opening and such an 
approach has been refused in the past.’

The Planning comments are shown as Appendix 6. This information was passed 
onto the agent and this can been seen in Appendix 7.

4.2.4 Health and Safety (Commercial team) requested an amendment to the 
operating schedule to include the following:

“A maximum of 35% of the floor area to be used for the display of alcohol.”

The Health and Safety representations are shown as Appendix 8

This was emailed to the agent and was agreed to. This can be found as Appendix 

4.2.5 Fire Safety Officer – has made no representation

4.2.6 Child Protection Agency – has made no representation

4.2.7 Trading Standards- has made no representation

4.2.8 Home Office – has made no representations

Page 7



6

4.3 There have been no representations received from members of the public.

5. Determining the Application

5.1 The Panel must, when reaching a decision on the outcome of the application, take 
into account the licensing objectives.  Having had proper regard to the matters 
above the Panel may:

5.1.1 Grant the licence application as applied for;

5.1.2 Modify the conditions of the licence or add any new conditions; or

5.1.3 Reject the whole or part of the application

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS

6.1 Anyone wishing to inspect background papers should, in the first place, be 
directed to Committee & Electoral Services who will make the necessary 
arrangements.

 

Page 8



IMPLICATIONS APPENDIX 1

     

Legal TThe Panel have to decide the outcome of the application taking into account the 
four licensing objectives.
In accordance with the provisions of the Act, if a licensing authority rejects in whole 
or in part, an application to vary a premises licence the applicant may appeal 
against the decision, to a Magistrates’ court within 21 days of being notified of the 
decision.
Similarly, where a person who made relevant representations in relation to the 
application contends that the licence ought not to have been granted or that 
different or additional conditions should have been imposed on the licence; they 
may appeal against the decision, to a Magistrates’ court within 21 days of being 
notified of the decision.  

Finance and 
Value for 
Money 

None unless there is an appeal about the Panel decision to Magistrates’ Court 
which proves to be successful and which could therefore result in costs being 
awarded against the Council.  It is therefore important that the Panel provide clear 
reasons for their decision.

Risk 
Assessment

Departure from the Guidance and Policy could lead to an increased risk of appeal.  
Similarly if any decision made is not evidence based and proportionate

Screening for Equality ImpactsEquality 
Impact 
Assessment Question

a. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper have 
potential to cause adverse impact or discriminate against different groups in the 
community? If yes, please explain answer.
No

b. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper make a 
positive contribution to promoting equality? If yes, please explain answer.
No

In submitting this report, the Chief Officer doing so is confirming that they have 
given due regard to the equality impacts of the decision being considered, as noted 
in the table above

Corporate 
Plan

There are direct links to Corporate Objective 1 – Safer Gravesham
There are indirect links to Corporate Objective 2 – Stronger Gravesham, and 
Objective 3 – Sustainable Gravesham.

Crime and 
Disorder

There are obvious links to community safety and the perception of crime and 
disorder if licensed premises are not run and managed properly or adequately 
enforced.  

Digital and 
website 
implications

Basic public notices will need updating on the website

Safeguarding 
children and 
vulnerable 
adults

The protection of children from harm is one of the four licensing objectives that 
must be promoted. 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



10/07/2018 

Page 1 of 3 
18/00644/LAPL04 

LICENSING ACT 2003 
Section 24 
 

Premises Licence 
 

Premises licence number: 18/00644/LAPL04  
 
Part 1 - Premises details 
 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 
 
MRH Gravesend  100 Old Road West 
 

Post town: Gravesend Post code: DA11  0LR 

Telephone number: 01474 33 30 03 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 
Off sales of alcohol only 
 

 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 
Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied except during permitted hours. 
In this condition, permitted hours means: 
a. On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, 8 a.m. to 11 p.m. 
b. On Sundays, other than Christmas Day, 10 a.m. to 10.30 p.m. 
c. On Christmas Day, 12 noon to 3 p.m. and 7 p.m. to 10.30 p.m. 
d. On Good Friday, 8 a.m. to 10.30 p.m. 
 
The above restrictions do not prohibit: 
(a) during the first twenty minutes after the above hours, the taking of the alcohol from the 
premises, unless the alcohol is supplied or taken in an open vessel; 
(b) the ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the despatch by the vendor of 
the alcohol so ordered; 
(c) the sale of alcohol to a trader or club for the purposes of the trade or club; 
(d) the sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a canteen in which the sale or 
supply of alcohol is carried out under the authority of the Secretary of State or an authorised 
mess of members of Her Majesty’s naval, military or air forces; 
 
Alcohol shall not be sold in an open container or be consumed in the licensed premises. 

 

The opening hours of the premises 
 
 Monday to Sunday  00.00 to 24.00 (24 Hours) 
 

 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off 
supplies 
 
Off sales only 
 

 
 
 

Page 11



10/07/2018 

Page 2 of 3 
18/00644/LAPL04 

Part 2 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of 
premises licence 
 
Malthurst Petroleum Limited, Vincent House, 4 Grove Lane, Epping, Essex CM16 4LH  
01992 57 19 37 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where 
applicable) 
762360 
 

 

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the 
premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol 
  
Mr Rajeevan Thiruchelvam 
 

 

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated 
premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol 
 
GM/PER/0607/0058   Gravesham Borough Council 
 

 
Mandatory conditions 
 
Condition 1 – took effect 24 November 2005 
No supply of alcohol may be made under this licence:- 
 
(a) At a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of it or 
(b) At a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or 

his/her personal licence is suspended. 
 
Every retail sale or supply of alcohol made under this licence must be made or authorised 
by a person who holds a personal licence. 
 
Condition 9  – took effect 1 October 2014 

(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age 
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply 
of alcohol 

   

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure 
that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age 
verification policy. 

   

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 
18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on 
request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of 
birth and either 

 
  (a) a holographic mark, or 

(b) an ultraviolet feature 
 
Condition 11 – took effect 28 May 2014 

Page 12



10/07/2018 

Page 3 of 3 
18/00644/LAPL04 

(1) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 
off the premises for a price, which is less than the permitted price. 

    
(2) For the purpose of the condition set out in paragraph 1:- 

 
(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 

1979(6); 
 

(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula:- P = D + (D x V) where:-  
 

(i) P is the permitted price, 

(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were 
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the 
value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol; 

 
(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force 

a premises licence:- 
 

(i)   the holder of the premises licence 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or 
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under 

such a licence; 
 

(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force 
a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in 
question; and  

 
(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994(7) 
 
(3)  Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph (2) would (apart from 

this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-
paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded 
up to the nearest penny. 

 
(4)  (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of 

paragraph (2) on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price 
on the next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or 
value added tax. 

 
(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies 

of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on 
the second day. 

 
 
 
Signed:  
 
 
 Sarah Kilkie MA MCIEH 
                Assistant Director (Communities)          Dated:  20 April 2018 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Gravesham
Application to vary a premises licence
Licensing Act 2003

For help contact

licensing@gravesham.gov.uk

Telephone: 01474 337252 

* required information

Section 1 of 18

You can save the form at any time and resume it later. You do not need to be logged in when you resume.

System reference Not Currently In Use This is the unique reference for this 
application generated by the system.

Your reference EMF/29898/174/RPB You can put what you want here to help you 
track applications if you make lots of them. It 
is passed to the authority.

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant?

Yes No

Put "no" if you are applying on your own 
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or 
work for.

Applicant Details

* First name MALTHURST PETROLEUM LIMITED

* Family name MALTHURST PETROLEUM LIMITED

* E-mail efinlay@wslaw.co.uk

Main telephone number Include country code.

Other telephone number

Indicate here if the applicant would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Is the applicant:

Applying as a business or organisation, including as a sole trader

Applying as an individual

A sole trader is a business owned by one 
person without any special legal structure.  
Applying as an individual means the 
applicant is applying so the applicant can be 
employed, or for some other personal reason, 
such as following a hobby.

Applicant Business
Is the applicant's business 
registered in the UK with 
Companies House?

Yes No Note: completing the Applicant Business 
section is optional in this form.

Registration number 00762360

Business name MALTHURST PETROLEUM LIMITED
If the applicant's business is registered, use 
its registered name.

VAT number GB NA Put "none" if the applicant is not registered 
for VAT.

Legal status Private Limited Company

Page 15



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Applicant's position in the 
business LICENSING DEPARTMENT

Home country United Kingdom
The country where the applicant's 
headquarters are.

Registered Address

Building number or name GLADSTONE PLACE

Street 36-38 UPPER MARLBOROUGH ROAD

District

City or town ST ALBANS

County or administrative area

Postcode AL1 3UU

Country United Kingdom

Address registered with Companies House.

Agent Details

* First name WINCKWORTH SHERWOOD LLP

* Family name WINCKWORTH SHERWOOD LLP

* E-mail efinlay@wslaw.co.uk

Main telephone number 02075935155 Include country code.

Other telephone number

Indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Are you:

An agent that is a business or organisation, including a sole trader

A private individual acting as an agent

A sole trader is a business owned by one 
person without any special legal structure.

Agent Business
Is your business registered in 
the UK with Companies 
House?

Yes No Note: completing the Applicant Business 
section is optional in this form.

Registration number OC 334359

Business name WINCKWORTH SHERWOOD LLP
If your business is registered, use its 
registered name.

VAT number GB 183868066 Put "none" if you are not registered for VAT.

Legal status Partnership

Page 16



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Your position in the business LEGAL ASSISTANT

Home country United Kingdom
The country where the headquarters of your 
business is located.

Agent Registered Address

Building number or name MINERVA HOUSE

Street 5 MONTAGUE CLOSE

District

City or town LONDON

County or administrative area

Postcode SE1 9BB

Country United Kingdom

Address registered with Companies House.

Section 2 of 18

APPLICATION DETAILS

This application cannot be used to vary the licence so as to extend the period for which the licence has effect or to 
vary substantially the premises to which it relates. If you wish to make that type of change to the premises licence, 
you should make a new premises licence application under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003.

I/we, as named in section 1, being the premises licence holder, apply to vary a premises licence under section 34 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in section 2 below.

* Premises Licence Number 18/00644/LAPL04

Are you able to provide a postal address, OS map reference or description of the premises?

Address OS map reference Description

Postal Address Of Premises

Building number or name MRH GRAVESEND

Street 100 OLD ROAD WEST

District

City or town GRAVESEND

County or administrative area

Postcode DA11 0LR

Country United Kingdom

Premises Contact Details

Telephone number

Page 17



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Non-domestic rateable 
value of premises (£) 34,250

Section 3 of 18

VARIATION

Do you want the proposed 
variation to have effect as 
soon as possible?

Yes No

Do you want the proposed variation to have effect in relation to the 
introduction of the late night levy? 

Yes No You do not have to pay a fee if the only 
purpose of the variation for which you are 
applying is to avoid becoming liable to the 
late night levy.

If your proposed variation 
would mean that 5,000 or 
more people are expected to 
attend the premises at any 
one time, state the number 
expected to attend

Describe Briefly The Nature Of The Proposed Variation

Describe the premises. For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other information which 
could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to 
provide a place for consumption of these off-supplies, you must include a description of where the place will be and its 
proximity to the premises.

A petrol forecourt store located at 100 Old Road West, Gravesend, DA11 0LR to be varied as follows: 
 
1. Extension of the hours for the sale of alcohol to 24 hours daily. 
2. The provision of late night refreshment between the hours of 2300 and 0500 daily. 
3. To remove any embedded conditions/restrictions in the premises licence. 
4. To include in the premises licence the conditions in boxes b to e of Section 16 of the application. 
5. To make alterations to the premises. 

Section 4 of 18

PROVISION OF PLAYS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide plays be subject to change if this application to 
vary is successful?

Yes No

Section 5 of 18

PROVISION OF FILMS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide films be subject to change if this application to 
vary is successful?

Yes No

Page 18



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Section 6 of 18

PROVISION OF INDOOR SPORTING EVENTS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide indoor sporting events be subject to change if 
this application to vary is successful?

Yes No

Section 7 of 18

PROVISION OF BOXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENTS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide boxing or wrestling entertainments be subject 
to change if this application to vary is successful?

Yes No

Section 8 of 18

PROVISION OF LIVE MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide live music be subject to change if this 
application to vary is successful?

Yes No

Section 9 of 18

PROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide recorded music be subject to change if this 
application to vary is successful?

Yes No

Section 10 of 18

PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide performances of dance be subject to change if 
this application to vary is successful?

Yes No

Section 11 of 18

PROVISION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MUSIC, RECORDED MUSIC OR PERFORMANCES OF 
DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide anything similar to live music, recorded music or 
performances of dance be subject to change if this application to vary is 
successful?

Yes No

Page 19



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Section 12 of 18

PROVISION OF LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT

Will the schedule to provide late night refreshment be subject to change if 
this application to vary is successful?

Yes No

Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY

Start 23:00 End 05:00

Start End

Provide timings in 24 hour clock 
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days 
of the week when you intend the premises 
to be used for the activity.

TUESDAY

Start 23:00 End 05:00

Start End

WEDNESDAY

Start 23:00 End 05:00

Start End

THURSDAY

Start 23:00 End 05:00

Start End

FRIDAY

Start 23:00 End 05:00

Start End

SATURDAY

Start 23:00 End 05:00

Start End

SUNDAY

Start 23:00 End 05:00

Start End

Will the provision of late night refreshment take place indoors or outdoors or 
both?

Indoors Outdoors Both Where taking place in a building or other 
structure  select as appropriate. Indoors may 
include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not 
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

Page 20



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

The provision will take place inside the premises but customers may leave the premises with items purchased.

State any seasonal variations.

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the provision of late night refreshment at different times from 
those listed above, list below.

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Section 13 of 18

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Will the schedule to supply alcohol be subject to change if this application to 
vary is successful?

Yes No

Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY

Start 00:00 End 24:00

Start End

Provide timings in 24 hour clock 
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days 
of the week when you intend the premises 
to be used for the activity.

TUESDAY

Start 00:00 End 24:00

Start End

WEDNESDAY

Start 00:00 End 24:00

Start End

THURSDAY

Start 00:00 End 24:00

Start End

Page 21



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

FRIDAY

Start 00:00 End 24:00

Start End

SATURDAY

Start 00:00 End 24:00

Start End

SUNDAY

Start 00:00 End 24:00

Start End

Will the sale of alcohol be for consumption?

On the premises Off the premises Both If the sale of alcohol is for consumption on 
the premises select on, if the sale of alcohol 
is for consumption away from the premises 
select off. If the sale of alcohol is for 
consumption on the premises and away 
from the premises select both.

State any seasonal variations.

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the supply of alcohol at different times from those listed above, 
list below.

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Section 14 of 18

ADULT ENTERTAINMENT

Highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, or other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the 
premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children.

Provide information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the premises which may 
give rise to concern in respect of children, regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for 
example (but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups etc gambling machines etc.

The premises sell alcohol and other age restricted products

Page 22



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Section 15 of 18

HOURS PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY

Start 00:00 End 24:00

Start End

Provide timings in 24 hour clock 
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days 
of the week when you intend the premises 
to be used for the activity.

TUESDAY

Start 00:00 End 24:00

Start End

WEDNESDAY

Start 00:00 End 24:00

Start End

THURSDAY

Start 00:00 End 24:00

Start End

FRIDAY

Start 00:00 End 24:00

Start End

SATURDAY

Start 00:00 End 24:00

Start End

SUNDAY

Start 00:00 End 24:00

Start End

State any seasonal variations.

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the members and guests at different times from 
those listed above, list below. 

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Page 23



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Identify those conditions currently imposed on the licence which you believe could be removed as a consequence of the 
proposed variation you are seeking.

The current permitted hours are: 
 
0800 to 2300 Monday to Saturday 
1000 to 2230 Sunday 
0800 to 2230 Good Friday 
1200 to 1500 and 1900 to 2230 Christmas Day 
 
Any embedded restrictions in the premises licence. 
 
The above conditions/restrictions would be removed as a consequence of this variation

I have enclosed the premises licence

I have enclosed the relevant part of the premises licence

Reasons why I have failed to enclose the premises licence or relevant part of premises licence.

Section 16 of 18

LICENSING OBJECTIVES

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General – all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e) 
List here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together. 

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

1. A CCTV system will be installed, or the existing system maintained,  such system to be fit for the purpose. 
 
2. The CCTV system shall be capable of producing immediate copies on site. Copies of recordings will either be recorded on 
good quality video tape or digitally on to CD/DVD or other equivalent medium. 
 
3. Any recording will be retained and stored in a suitable and secure manner for a minimum of 31 days and shall be made 
available, subject to compliance with Data Protection legislation, to the police for inspection on request. 
 
4. The precise positions of the camera may be agreed, subject to  compliance with Data Protection legislation, with the 
police from time to  time. 
 
5. The system will display, on any recording, the correct time and date of  the recording. 
 
6. The CCTV system will be maintained and fully operational throughout  the hours that the premises are open for any 

Page 24



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...
licensable activity. 

c) Public safety

There will at all times be adequate levels of staff maintained at the premises. Such staff levels will be disclosed, on request, 
to the licensing authority and police.

d) The prevention of public nuisance

Adequate waste receptacles for use by customers shall be provided in and immediately outside the premises.

e) The protection of children from harm

The premises licence holder will ensure that an age verification policy will apply to the premises whereby all cashiers will 
be trained to ask any customer attempting to purchase alcohol, who appears to be under the age of 25 years (or older if the 
licence holder so elects) to produce, before being sold alcohol, identification being a passport or photocard driving licence 
bearing a holographic mark or other form of identification that complies with any mandatory condition that may apply to 
this licence.

Section 17 of 18

NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT

Page 25



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:  

• Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience  
 does not exceed 500. 

• Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises  between 08.00 and  
 23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the  
 screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides  
 by age classification ratings. 

• Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided  
 that the audience does not exceed 1000.     

• Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment:  no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman  
 wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not  
 exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports – defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or  
 wrestling with one or more martial arts – are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an  
 indoor sporting event. 

• Live music: no licence permission is required for: 
o a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell  
 alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not  
 licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.  
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,  
 community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell  
 alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the  
 performance from a person who is responsible for the premises. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises 
 of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500,  
 and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local  
 authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital. 

• Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for: 
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol  
 for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,  
 community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell  
 alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the  
 performance from a person who is responsible for the premises. 
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a  
 local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) 
 the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority  
 concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital. 

Page 26



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

• Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the  
 audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance which amounts to adult entertainment remains  
 licensable. 

• Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, with no limit on  
 audience size for:    

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where the entertainment is provided 
 by or on behalf of the local authority;  
o any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care provider where the  
 entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care provider;  
o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the entertainment is provided by or  
 on behalf of the school proprietor; and 
o any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment) taking place at a travelling  
 circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience, and  
 (b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28 consecutive days. 

Section 18 of 18

PAYMENT DETAILS

This fee must be paid to the authority. If you complete the application online, you must pay it by debit or credit card.

Variation Fees are determined by the non&nbsp;domestic rateable&nbsp;value of the premises. 
To find out a premises non domestic rateable value go to the Valuation Office Agency site at http://www.voa.gov.uk/
business_rates/index.htm 
Band A - No RV to £4300 £100.00 
Band B - £4301 to £33000 £190.00 
Band C - £33001 to £8700 £315.00 
Band D - £87001 to £12500 £450.00* 
Band E - £125001 and over £635.00* 
*If the premises rateable value is in Bands D or E and the premises is primarily used for the consumption of alcohol on the 
premises then your are required to pay a higher fee 
Band D - £87001 to £12500 £900.00 
Band E - £125001 and over £1,905.00 
If you own a large premise you are subject to additional fees based upon the number in attendance at any one time 
Capacity 5000-9999 £1,000.00 
Capacity 10000 -14999 £2,000.00 
Capacity 15000-19999 £4,000.00 
Capacity 20000-29999 £8,000.00 
Capacity 30000-39000 £16,000.00 
Capacity 40000-49999 £24,000.00 
Capacity 50000-59999 £32,000.00 
Capacity 60000-69999 £40,000.00 
Capacity 70000-79999 £48,000.00 
Capacity 80000-89999 £56,000.00 
Capacity 90000 and over £64,000.00

* Fee amount (£) 315.00

DECLARATION
1

* I/we understand it is an offence, liable on conviction to a fine up to level 5 on the standard scale, under section 158 of the 
licensing act 2003, to make a false statement in or in connection with this application.

Ticking this box indicates you have read and understood the above declaration

This section should be completed by the applicant, unless you answered "Yes" to the question "Are you an agent acting on 
behalf of the applicant?”

Page 27



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

* Full name WINCKWORTH SHERWOOD LLP

* Capacity SOLICITORS ON BEHALF OF THE APPLICANT

* Date 03 / 01 / 2019
 dd               mm             yyyy

Add another signatory

Once you're finished you need to do the following: 
1. Save this form to your computer by clicking file/save as...
2. Go back to  https://www.gov.uk/apply-for-a-licence/premises-licence/gravesham/change-1 to upload this file and 
continue with your application.
Don't forget to make sure you have all your supporting documentation to hand.

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN 
CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY 
CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Applicant reference number EMF/29898/174/RPB

Fee paid

Payment provider reference

ELMS Payment Reference

Payment status

Payment authorisation code

Payment authorisation date

Date and time submitted

Approval deadline

Error message

Is Digitally signed

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 Next >

Page 28



Chief Officer of Police Representation in relation to an application for variation of a premise 
licence made under Part 3 Section 34 Licensing Act 2003 (S35 Licensing Act 2003)

Details of person making representation
Name of Chief Officer of Police Chief Superintendent SMITH                     
Postal Address:
(Divisional Headquarters)

Medway Police Station
Purser Way
Gillingham
Kent 
ME7 1NE

E-mail address licensing.north.division@kent.pnn.police.uk
Telephone Numbers:
Licensing Co-ordinator Geoff Rowley 01634 792733
Licensing Officers Chris Hill 01634 792276

Clare Cossar 01634 792411
Diane Holroyd 01634 792388
Dan Hunt 01634 792388

Details of premises representation is about
Name of Premises: MRH Gravesend
Address of premises: 100 Old Road West 

Gravesend
Kent
DA11 0LR

Date application received by police 3rd January 2019 

Date representation sent to Licensing Authority.
All representations must be made within 28 days of 
receipt of initial application
The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and Club 
Premises Certificates) Regulations 2005. Part 4 Reg. 22.

30th January 2019 

The Chief Officer of Police has received an application for the variation of a premises licence made 
under the provisions of Section 35 Licensing Act 2003, and under Section 35 of that Act, asks the 
Licensing Authority to consider these representations in respect of: - 

Prevention of crime and disorder X
Public Safety X
Prevention of public nuisance X
Protection of children from harm X

Page 29



Please give the reason for the representation and detail the evidence supporting it under the 
appropriate headings:

This venue already operates as petrol filling station with attached store that already has a premises licence 
authorising the sale of alcohol on an off sale basis. The premises is currently permitted to sell alcohol on 
weekdays from 08:00 to 23:00, on Sundays from 10:00 to 22:30, on Christmas Day from 12:00 to 15:00 and 
from 19:00 to 22:30 and on Good Friday from 08:00 to 22:30. 

The applicant is requesting to vary the premises licence to enable the sale of alcohol on a 24 hour basis and 
also to enable the provision of late night refreshment daily from 23:00 to 05:00

In order to promote the licensing objectives the applicant has offered the following conditions: 
- CCTV condition
- Adequate staffing levels at all times
- Adequate waste receptacles to be provided outside of the premises
- Challenge 25 age verification policy

Kent Police have no concerns with regards to how the premises currently operates but are opposed to the 
proposal of it becoming a 24 hour operation. The premises is located in a residential area. It is likely that the 
extension of the operation at this premises to become a 24 hour service will cause a disturbance to residents. 
The granting of a 24 hour licence at this location is likely to make the premises an attractive proposition in the 
early hours of the morning to persons on their way home from one of the many bars and restaurants located in 
the town centre. This increases the risk of incident or disturbance caused by persons attending the premises 
that are already under the influence of alcohol. Whilst the premises is located in a residential area, the town 
centre remains only a short walk away. Currently there are no other premises with a 24 hour licence located on 
this side of town and the area immediate to this premises does not suffer with the same levels or antisocial 
behaviour and crime and disorder that is currently experienced less than a mile away in the centre of town. 
It is inevitable that an amount of disturbance will be generated by customers using this premises should it 
operate on a 24 hour basis. It is felt that the proposed conditions are not sufficient to promote the licensing 
objectives and do not alleviate our concerns.

It is our understanding that planning permission for the premises to operate on a 24 hour basis has been 
declined. Should this variation be granted and the premises operate to the proposed timings, this could amount 
to a breach of planning. 

To date the applicant has been made aware of our concerns but is yet to respond or make contact regarding 
the concerns raised.

Kent Police are opposed to this application. Should the application be granted, Kent Police would seek the below 
conditions in addition to those already proposed by the applicant: 

The application is for the premise to be open:
Monday to Sunday - 24 hours  

Sale of Alcohol:
Monday to Sunday – 24 hours

Late night refreshment: 
Monday to Sunday – 23:00 to 05:00

Kent Police are opposed to this application under the times stated and propose the following:
 
1)  Prevention of Crime and Disorder

Page 30



The promotion of this objective by the imposition of conditions is a key to the Licensing Act 2003. It is 
important that conditions are attached to this licence that seeks to effectively promote this objective and 
minimise the risk of it being undermined. The conditions need to be clear and precise. 

2) Public Safety

Much of the representations that have been made in respect of the impact on the Licensing Objective of Crime 
& Disorder can be mirrored under this objective. Any incident of Public Order or Assault has a propensity to 
have an element of collateral impact on Public Safety, through the protagonists and their interaction with Police. 
Licence holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those using their premises and this objective is 
concerned with the safety of persons using the premises rather than public health. Conditions imposed under 
public safety will also promote the crime and disorder objective.  

3) Prevention of Public Nuisance

Public nuisance under the Licensing Act enables the interpretation of nuisance to retain its wider meaning under 
common law. It therefore retains the breadth and flexibility to take in all the concerns likely to arise from the 
operation of any premises conducting licensable activities in terms of the impact of nuisance on people living or 
doing business nearby.
Any incidents that Kent Police responds to are by definition a nuisance to some section of our community. 

4) Protection of Children from harm

The protection of children from harm includes protection from moral, psychological and physical harm; 
therefore this is not just about protecting the children from the inherent harms of alcohol. 

Kent Police seek the attachment of the following conditions to clarify those proposed in the 
operating schedule, and assist in the promotion of the licensing objectives:

1. No beer, lager or cider above 5.5 % ABV shall be sold at the premises

2. No single cans or bottles of beer, lager or cider shall be sold at the premises

3. The customer entrance door to the premises is to be locked daily between 23:00 to 05:00. 
During these times all sales must be made via the service window 

4. CCTV will be provided in the form of a recordable system, capable of providing pictures of 
evidential quality in all lighting conditions.

 Equipment must be maintained in good working order, be correctly time and date 
stamped, recordings MUST be kept on the hard drive and kept for a period of 30 days 
and handed to Police upon reasonable request.  

 The premises licence holder must ensure at all times a DPS or appointed member of 
staff is capable and competent at downloading CCTV footage in a recordable format to 
the Police and Local Authority upon reasonable request.  

 The recording equipment and hard drive shall be kept in a secure environment under 
the control of the DPS or other responsible named individual. 

Page 31



 In the event of technical failure of the CCTV equipment the premises licence holder or 
DPS must report the failure to the Police Licensing Officer within 24 hours unless the 
CCTV will be repaired before that time (licensing.north.division@kent.pnn.police.uk)

5. All persons that sell or supply alcohol to customers must have licensing training.  

Training should take place within six weeks of employment and any new employees will be 
supervised until the training has taken place.  
Training must include:-

 Avoiding sales of alcohol or age restricted products to those under the age of 18.
 recognising customers who appear drunk and refusing sale or supply of alcohol 
 knows the licensing objectives and  have read and understood licence conditions
 can produce licences/certificates/permits relevant to the premises in the absence of 

licence holder/DPS. 
 Refresher training should be repeated a minimum of every twelve months or earlier if 

required due to changes of legislation. 
 Training records must be kept on the premises and shall contain the nature, content 

and frequency of all training. 
 Records must be made available for inspection by Police, Police Licensing Officer and 

authorised officers from the Local Authority upon reasonable request either 
electronically or hard copy.

6. The License Holder will maintain auditable refusal/incident records. These records will detail 
the following;

a) Day, Date and Time of Refusal/Incident.
b) Nature of Refusal/Incident and reason. 
c) Details of or description of the individual.

These records will be made available for inspection to any Police Officer, Police Licensing 
Officer, and Officer of the Local Authority immediately upon demand

7. Clear and legible notices must be prominently displayed requesting customers to respect 
local residents and leave the area quietly. 

PC Daniel Hunt 
PP Ch Supt TIM SMITH                                       Date: 30th January 2019
North Division Area Commander

Page 32

mailto:licensing.north.division@kent.pnn.police.uk


From: Cartwright, Mandy
To: Lane-Blackwell, Emily
Subject: RE: Variation of Premises lIcence
Date: 04 January 2019 09:50:45

One we have used previously is a maximum of 35% of the floor area to be used for the display of
alcohol.
 
Mandy Cartwright BSc(Hons) MSc CMCIEH
Senior EHO (Health and Safety) / Corporate Health and Safety Advisor
Gravesham Borough Council
Tel: 01474 337309
email: mandy.cartwright@gravesham.gov.uk
Gravesham Borough Council – Delivering for the Community
Please consider the environment before printing this email
 
Customer services is of paramount importance to the Council.  Please always contact
us if you require further advice and assistance
 

From: Lane-Blackwell, Emily 
Sent: 04 January 2019 09:35
To: Cartwright, Mandy
Subject: RE: Variation of Premises lIcence
 
Hi Mandy
 
If you wish to request a condition be added to their operating schedule, let me know
what it is and I shall contact the applicant to mediate.
 
Regards
 
Emily Lane-Blackwell
Licensing Officer
Regulatory Services
Gravesham Borough Council
Telephone 01474 33 71 83
Email emily.lane-blackwell@gravesham.gov.uk
Or licensing@gravesham.gov.uk
Gravesham Borough Council - Delivering for the Community
Please consider the environment before printing this email
 
From: Commercialhealth Admin 
Sent: 03 January 2019 16:26
To: Lane-Blackwell, Emily
Subject: RE: Variation of Premises lIcence
 
I can confirm that I would have no objection to this application are we going to ask for a
percentage of the floor space to  be permitted for the display of alcohol to prevent it becoming
100% off-licence?
 
Mandy Cartwright BSc(Hons) MSc CMCIEH
Senior EHO (Health and Safety) / Corporate Health and Safety Advisor
Gravesham Borough Council
Tel: 01474 337309

Page 33

mailto:mandy.cartwright@gravesham.gov.uk
mailto:emily.lane-blackwell@gravesham.gov.uk
mailto:mandy.cartwright@gravesham.gov.uk
mailto:emily.lane-blackwell@gravesham.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@gravesham.gov.uk


email: mandy.cartwright@gravesham.gov.uk
Gravesham Borough Council – Delivering for the Community
Please consider the environment before printing this email
 
Customer services is of paramount importance to the Council.  Please always contact
us if you require further advice and assistance
 

From: Lane-Blackwell, Emily 
Sent: 03 January 2019 11:47
To: (licensing@kent.fire-uk.org); Commercialhealth Admin; Environmentalprotection Admin; Geoff
Rowley (licensing.north.division@kent.pnn.police.uk); Home Office (alcohol@homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk);
Planning Admin; Public Health; Social Services; West Kent Trading Standards
(trading.standards@kent.gov.uk)
Subject: Variation of Premises lIcence
 
Dear All
 
Please find attached the application for a variation at 100 Old Road West, Gravesend.
 
Can I please have any comments by 31 January 2018.
 
Regards
 
Emily Lane-Blackwell
Licensing Officer
Regulatory Services
Gravesham Borough Council
Telephone 01474 33 71 83
Email emily.lane-blackwell@gravesham.gov.uk
Or licensing@gravesham.gov.uk
Gravesham Borough Council - Delivering for the Community
Please consider the environment before printing this email
 

Page 34

mailto:mandy.cartwright@gravesham.gov.uk
mailto:emily.lane-blackwell@gravesham.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@gravesham.gov.uk


From: Lane-Blackwell, Emily
To: efinlay@wslaw.co.uk
Subject: MRH Gravesend, 100 Old Road West
Date: 08 January 2019 10:35:00

Dear Sir/Madam
 
Please find below the comments received from the Responsible Authority for Planning
in Gravesham.
 
The hours of use of the petrol filing station are controlled under the planning permission
granted under 19980283 as amended by 20000158, currently 0600 to 2300. 
Planning permission will be required for 24 hours opening.
 
Can you please pass this information onto your client.
 
Regards
 
Emily Lane-Blackwell
Licensing Officer
Regulatory Services
Gravesham Borough Council
Telephone 01474 33 71 83
Email emily.lane-blackwell@gravesham.gov.uk
Or licensing@gravesham.gov.uk
Gravesham Borough Council - Delivering for the Community
Please consider the environment before printing this email
 

Page 35

mailto:emily.lane-blackwell@gravesham.gov.uk
mailto:efinlay@wslaw.co.uk
mailto:emily.lane-blackwell@gravesham.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@gravesham.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



From: Waterman, Avril
To: Lane-Blackwell, Emily
Subject: PRE20190006 Service Station 100 Old Road West
Date: 08 January 2019 09:57:37
Attachments: image001.png

Dear Emily
 
Peter Price comments as below.
 
The hours of use of the petrol filing station are controlled under the planning permission
granted under 19980283 as amended by 20000158, currently 0600 to 2300.  Planning
permission will be required for 24 hours opening and such an approach has been
refused in the past.
 
Kind regards
 
Mrs Avril Waterman
Admin Assistant (Planning & Regeneration)
Gravesham Borough Council
Tel: 01474 337688
Fax: 01474 337942
email: avril.waterman@gravesham.gov.uk
 
cid:image003.png@01D10DA6.6D83A010

 
Gravesham Borough Council – Delivering for the Community
 

Page 37

mailto:avril.waterman@gravesham.gov.uk
mailto:emily.lane-blackwell@gravesham.gov.uk
mailto:avril.waterman@gravesham.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



From: Robert Botkai
To: Lane-Blackwell, Emily
Cc: Elaine Finlay; Andrew Sanders
Subject: MRH Gravesend Variation
Date: 11 January 2019 16:36:58
Attachments: image001.png

Dear Emily
 
Thank you for your email dated 4 January addressed to Elaine Finlay.
 
I confirm that our client agrees that the operating schedule be amended to include the following
condition:
 
“A maximum of 35% of the floor area to be used for the display of alcohol.”
 
Kind regards
 
Robert
 
Robert Botkai
Partner

LOGO gif.GIF

T +44 (0) 20 7593 5004
M +44 (0) 7768 173936
rbotkai@wslaw.co.uk

Our Privacy Notice

www.wslaw.co.uk

 
 

Cyber Crime Alert 
Emails can be scammed. Please do not rely on email notification of bank account
changes without direct verbal confirmation from a trusted source.

Winckworth Sherwood
Minerva House | 5 Montague Close | London | SE1 9BB | DX 156810 London Bridge 6
T 020 7593 5000 | F 020 7593 5099
Our Privacy Notice 
This email and any attachments are confidential and may be the subject of legal privilege. Any use, copying or disclosure other than by the
intended recipient is unauthorised. If you have received this message in error, please notify the sender immediately via 020 7593 5000 and
delete this message from your computer and network.
Winckworth Sherwood is a business name of Winckworth Sherwood LLP, a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with the
registered number OC334359. Winckworth Sherwood is authorised and regulated in the United Kingdom by the Solicitors Regulation Authority
and has offices in London, Oxford and Manchester. A list of the members (who we may refer to as "partners") and their professional
qualifications may be inspected at the registered office, Minerva House, 5 Montague Close, London, SE1 9BB. For further information about the
firm please visit www.wslaw.co.uk.
P 
Please consider the environment and do not print this e-mail unless you really need to.

Page 39

mailto:rbotkai@wslaw.co.uk
mailto:emily.lane-blackwell@gravesham.gov.uk
mailto:efinlay@wslaw.co.uk
mailto:asanders@wslaw.co.uk
http://www.wslaw.co.uk/
mailto:rbotkai@wslaw.co.uk
https://wslaw.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/05/Winckworth-Sherwood-Privacy-Notice.pdf
http://www.wslaw.co.uk/
https://wslaw.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/05/Winckworth-Sherwood-Privacy-Notice.pdf
http://www.wslaw.co.uk/



This page is intentionally left blank



From: Glasson, Allan
To: Licensing
Cc: Daniel Hunt PC 46011044 (daniel.hunt@kent.pnn.police.uk)
Subject: RE: Variation application for MRH Gravesend, 100 Old Road West, Gravesend
Date: 25 January 2019 09:35:21
Attachments: image001.png

Hi,
 
I have not heard anything further from applicant so sending this to you to confirm this
Service’s formal objection to the application.
 
Allan
 
Allan Glasson
Senior Environmental Health Officer
Gravesham Borough Council
Tel: 01474 33 72 55
email: allan.glasson@gravesham.gov.uk
Gravesham Borough Council – Delivering for the Community
Please consider the environment before printing this email
 
From: Glasson, Allan 
Sent: 17 January 2019 12:20
To: 'efinlay@wslaw.co.uk'
Cc: Licensing; Geoff Rowley (licensing.north.division@kent.pnn.police.uk)
(licensing.north.division@kent.pnn.police.uk)
Subject: Variation application for MRH Gravesend, 100 Old Road West, Gravesend
 
Dear Sir/Madam,
 
This Service is in receipt of your application for the above premises. It is noted this
includes
1. Extension of the hours for the sale of alcohol to 24 hours daily.
2. The provision of late night refreshment between the hours of 2300 and 0500 daily.
 
It is understood the premises are currently restricted by  planning permission to open 
from 06:00 to 23:00.
 
This Service has serious concerns  around the extended opening of these premises as
follows:
 
Whilst no  complaints have been received from the use of this petrol filling station as it is
currently operating, it is considered the extension of operation to 24 hour use will cause
noise disturbance due to customers attracted to the area. This will be new noise in an
area that is generally residential in nature. Residences affected will include a number of
properties on Darnley Road which have rear facades approximately 20 metres away
that directly overlook the petrol station forecourt.  The noise will include loud
conversations, shouting, revving of vehicles, wheel screech, radios etc. There are no
other late night opening/24 hour premises operating in the vicinity so this operation will
have the potential to attract people from a significant distance including people on their
way home from late night opening licensed premises in the town.
 
It is considered that an amount of disturbance caused by patrons from the 24 hour
operation of petrol stations is inevitable and cannot be prevented by condition. Given

Page 41

mailto:allan.glasson@gravesham.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@gravesham.gov.uk
mailto:daniel.hunt@kent.pnn.police.uk
mailto:allan.glasson@gravesham.gov.uk



the residential nature of this area it is considered the introduction of the proposed use is
likely to cause public nuisance and this Service therefore intends to formally object to
the current application.
 
Please contact me by 24 January to make any representations in this case or if you
wish to withdraw this application  . In the event I do not hear from you by this date this
Service will formally object to the application..
 
Yours faithfully
 
 
 
Allan dig signature

 
 
Allan Glasson
Senior Environmental Health Officer
Gravesham Borough Council
Tel: 01474 33 72 55
email: allan.glasson@gravesham.gov.uk
Gravesham Borough Council – Delivering for the Community
Please consider the environment before printing this email
 

Page 42

mailto:allan.glasson@gravesham.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3 Consideration of Application for a variation of a  Premises Licence for MRH Gravesend, 100 Old Road West, Gravesend, Kent DA11 0LR
	Appendix 2 licence removed DPS address
	Appendix 3 - App
	Appendix 4 - Police
	RE_ Variation of Premises lIcence
	MRH Gravesend, 100 Old Road West
	PRE20190006 Service Station 100 Old Road West
	MRH Gravesend Variation
	RE_ Variation application for MRH Gravesend, 100 Old Road West, Gravesend


